
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA                           CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS                            PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

 

  

April 20, 2021  5:30 pm 
  

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jonathan McCollar 
 

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilmember Phil Boyum 
 

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations 
 
A) Presentation by Richard Deal with Lanier, Deal, and Proctor on how the City 

financially ended Fiscal Year 2020. 
 

B) Presentation to the Finance Department for receiving the Government Finance 
Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting for the 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

 
4. Public Comments (Agenda Item): 

 
5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

 
A) Approval of Minutes 

a) 04-06-2021 Council Minutes 
b) 03-16-2021 Executive Session Minutes 
c) 04-06-2021 Executive Session Minutes 

 
B) Consideration of a motion for approval of the surplus of nine (9) vehicles in the 

Statesboro Police Department.  
 

6. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION RZ 21-03-
01: Lindsay Martin requests a zoning map amendment from the R-15 (Single-Family 
Residential) zoning district to the HOC (Highway Oriented Commercial) zoning district, 
on 2 acres of property in order to construct a multi-tenant commercial building at 141 
Williams Road (Tax Parcel# MS49 000004 001). 
 

7. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION V 21-03-
02: Mohamed F Alshuaibi requests a variance from Article XV, Section 1509 (Table 4) 
of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance in order to construct a building sign exceeding the 
allowed square footage on a 4.03 acre property located at 1825 Northside Drive East (Tax 
Parcel# S38 000042 000). 
 
 
 
 



 
 

8. Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2021-18: A Resolution authorizing the 
destruction of certain Municipal Records.  
 

9. Consideration of a Motion to approve the proposed Statesboro Youth Connect Program 
and the authorization of an expenditure of $25,000.00 to be used as stipends for the 
participants. 
 

10. Consideration of a Motion to approve the purchase of 40 Scott Self-Contained Breathing 
Apparatus (SCBA) Cylinders from Hyro-Stat, Inc. in the amount of $34,886.40. 
 

11. Consideration of a Motion to approve the purchase of 20 Scott X3 Pro SCBA’s and 20 
SCBA Mask under the Georgia State Contract #99999-SPD-SPD0000156 to Fisher 
Scientific in the amount of $177,149.00. 
 

12. Consideration of a Motion to Approve change orders #1 - 6 with John Lavender & 
Associates for the Luetta Moore Park and Grady Street Park project in an amount not to 
exceed $349,808.70 and to authorize the Mayor to execute contract document 
amendments to proceed with construction of services and products. 
 

13. Consideration of a motion to award a contract to Xylem Dewatering Solutions, Inc. in the 
amount of $46,260.22 for installation of one lift station pump. 
 

14. Consideration of a motion to award a contract to Y-Delta, Inc in the amount of 
$32,820.00 to replace windows at the wastewater treatment plant. 
 

15. Other Business from City Council 
 
16.  City Managers Comments 
 
17. Public Comments (General) 

 
18. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” 

“Real Estate” and/or “Potential Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A 50-14-3(b) 
 

19. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 







 
 
  
 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
COUNCIL MINUTES 

APRIL 6, 2021 

1 
 

 
Regular Meeting                         50 E. Main St. City Hall Council Chambers                                      9:00 AM 
 
Call to Order 
Mayor Pro Tem Paulette Chavers called the meeting to order  

 
Invocation and Pledge 
Councilmember Shari Barr gave the Invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
ATTENDENCE  

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Jonathan McCollar Mayor Absent   
Phil Boyum Councilmember Present    
Paulette Chavers Mayor Pro Tem Present  
Venus Mack Councilmember Present  
John Riggs Councilmember Present   
Shari Barr Councilmember Present  

 
Other staff present: City Manager Charles Penny, Assistant City Manager Jason Boyles, Public Information Officer 
Layne Phillips, City Attorney Cain Smith and City Clerk Leah Harden 

 
Public Comments (Agenda Item): None  
 
Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 03-16-2021 Council Minutes 

B) Consideration of a Motion to approval of surplus and disposition of equipment in the Public 
Works and Engineering Departments.  

 
A motion was made to approve the consent agenda.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Councilmember Venus Mack 

Boyum, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

 



2 
 

 
Public Hearing & Consideration of a motion to approve application for an alcohol license Sec. 6-5: 
 

A. Food Mart  
18 E Parrish St.  
Statesboro, GA 30458 
Owner: Sangitabahen Patel 

B. Go Market 
2855 Northside Dr W Ste A 
Statesboro, GA 30458 
Owner: Parth Patel  

 
A Motion was made to open the public hearing.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
No one spoke for or against the request.  
 
A motion was made to close the public hearing.     
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
A motion was made to approve an alcohol license for Food Mart located at 18 E Parrish St., and Go Market located at 
2855 Northside Drive W Ste. A.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Venus Mack 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Boyum, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Venus Mack 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Boyum, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Venus Mack 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Boyum, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

 



 

3 
 

Consideration of a motion to approve the Statesboro Police Department Towing Rotation and Wrecker 
Agreement. 
 
A motion was made to approve the Statesboro Police Department Towing Rotation and Wrecker Agreement.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
Consideration of a motion to approve an Amendment of Lease agreement with GSU Business Innovation 
Group (Board of Regents of the University System of Georgia) to expand leased premises to include 
“Suite C” (former location of Cake) located at 58 East Main Street.  
 
A motion was made to approve an amendment of lease agreement with GSU Business Innovation Group (Board of 
Regents of the University System of Georgia) to expand leased premises to include “Suite C” (former location of Cake) 
located at 58 East Main Street.    
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
Consideration of a motion to approve Resolution 2021-17: A Resolution approving application for 
funding from the local Government Scrap Tire Abatement Reimbursement (STAR) program in an 
amount not to exceed $15,000.00 for a tire amnesty day event.  
 
A motion was made to approve Resolution 2021-17: approving application for funding from the local Government Scrap 
Tire Abatement Reimbursement (STAR) program in an amount not to exceed $15,000.00 for a tire amnesty day event.    
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Venus Mack 

Councilmember Phil Boyum 

Boyum, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Shari Barr 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Boyum, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Councilmember Phil Boyum 

Boyum, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

 



4 
 

Consideration of a motion to approve Resolution 2021-18: A Resolution approving application for 
funding from the Local Government Scrap Tire Abatement Reimbursement (STAR) program in an 
amount not to exceed $6,000.00 for disposal of tires collected in public right of ways.  
 
A motion was made to approve Resolution 2021-18: approving application for funding from Local Government Scrap 
Tire Abatement Reimbursement (STAR) program in an amount not to exceed 6,000.00 for disposal of tires collected in 
public right of ways.    
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
Consideration of a motion to approve an amendment to the contract with Freese & Nichols in the 
amount of $65,000.00 to perform hydraulic and hydrology modeling study of the flood plain for the 
Creek on the Blue Mile Project.   
 
A motion was made to approve an amendment to the contract with Freese & Nichols in the amount of $65,000.00 to 
perform hydraulic and hydrology modeling study of the flood plain for the Creek on the Blue Mile Project.    
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
Other Business from City Council:  
 
Councilmember Shari Barr shared that Feed the Boro will be having a food drop this Saturday at 9:00 am at 
South East Bulloch High School. In addition, there will be a community memorial this Sunday at 4:00 pm at 
the Courthouse square, for everyone to come together and recognize the loss of the more than 110 people who 
died in the last year of COVID.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paulette Chavers announced the month of April as Autism Awareness Month. Be mindful of 
those who have been diagnosed with autism, let us learn more about autism, and how if effects individuals.  
Keep Little Lotts Creek in your prayers they have lost their homes, and we are trying to gather resources for 
them. 
 
Venus Mack stated all of the families who have been effected by the fires in the last two weeks, let’s just keep 
their families in our prayers. 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Venus Mack 

Councilmember Shari Barr 

Boyum, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Councilmember Shari Barr 

Boyum, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

 



 

5 
 

City Managers Comments 
City Manager Charles Penny reminded everyone of the Great American Clean Up this Saturday at 9:00 am. 
This event will begin at the Statesboro Convention and Visitors Bureau on South Main Street.  
 
Mr. Penny also shared the City will be holding a vaccination session for its employees and their spouses on 
April 19, 2021. 
 
Councilmember Phil Boyum congratulates GSU in their efforts with rolling out the vaccination. They 
vaccinated 1600 just on Friday and have already vaccinated 3400.  
 
 
Public Comments (General): None 
 
 
Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” in accordance 
with O.C.G.A. 50-14-3(b). 
 
At 9:25 am, a motion was made to enter into Executive Session.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
At 9:33 am, a motion was made to exit Executive Session.    
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paulette Chavers called the meeting back to order with no action taken in Executive Session. 
  
 
Consideration of a motion to appoint three members to the Keep Statesboro-Bulloch Beautiful Advisory 
Board. 
 
A motion was made to appoint Alissa Sasser, Eddie Lott, and Jenn Morris as members to the Keep Statesboro-Bulloch 
Beautiful Advisory Board.   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember Venus Mack 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Boyum, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Councilmember Venus Mack 

Boyum, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   



6 
 

 
  RESULT: 

 
  MOVER: 

 
  SECONDER: 

 
  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
A motion was made to adjourn.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:34 am 
 
  

_______________________________ 
Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 

 
_______________________________ 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 
 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Councilmember Venus Mack 

Boyum, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilmember John Riggs 

Councilmember Venus Mack 

Boyum, Mack, Riggs, Barr 

 



  

TO:   Charles Penny, City Manager 

FROM:   Mike Broadhead, Chief of Police 

DATE:   April 20, 2021 

RE:   Surplus of Vehicles past Service Life 

POLICY ISSUE:  Surplus Vehicles 

RECOMMENDATION: That Council approve the “surplus” of vehicles that are past their service 
life or are not usable. 

BACKGROUND: The Police Department is requesting that the City Council approve 
removing the following nine (9) listed vehicles from the city inventory 
through “surplus” action: 

• 2002 Ford Expedition (VIN 1FMRU17W53LA72162) (Mileage 141,782) currently dead-
lined due to mechanical issues 

• 2005 Ford F-250 (VIN 1FTSW21525ECO7237) (Mileage 116,162) 
• 2006 Chevrolet Impala (VIN 2G1WS551069365837) (Mileage 90,635) 
• 2007 Dodge Charger (VIN 2B3KA43H57H708699) (Mileage 109,404) 
• 2007 Dodge Charger (VIN 2B3KA43H97H770008) (Mileage 108,100) 
• 2008 Ford Expedition (VIN 1FMFU15508LA81189) (Mileage 99,678) currently dead-lined 

due to mechanical issues 
• 2011 Ford Expedition (VIN 1FMJU1H51BEF21664) (Mileage 140,351) 
• 2011 Dodge Charger (VIN 2B3CL1CT0BH540576) (Mileage 102,673) 
• 2011 Dodge Charger (VIN 2B3CL1CT5BH540332) (Mileage 118,972) 

BUDGET IMPACT: These vehicles will be sold through an auction process as per city 
procedure. 

COUNCIL DISTRICT: All 

 ATTACHMENTS: N/A 



CITY OF STATESBORO 
 

COUNCIL 

Phil Boyum, District 1 

Paulette Chavers, District 2 

Venus Mack, District 3 

John Riggs, District 4 

Shari Barr, District 5 

 
 

 

Jonathan M. McCollar, Mayor 

Charles Penny, City Manager 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 • STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence    Certified City of Ethics  

Telephone: (912) 764-5468      Fax: (912) 764-4691                                                                   

www.statesboroga.gov  

To: Charles Penny, City Manager and Leah Harden, City Clerk 

 

From: Justin Williams, City Planner II 

 

Date: April 12, 2021 

 

RE: April 20, 2021 City Council Agenda Items 

 

Policy Issue: Statesboro Zoning Ordinance: Zoning Map Amendment 

 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Zoning Map Amendment 

requested by RZ 21-03-01 with conditions.  

 

Background: Lindsay Martin requests a zoning map amendment from the R-15 

(Single-Family Residential) zoning district to the HOC (Highway Oriented 

Commercial) zoning district, on 2 acres of property in order to construct a multi-

tenant commercial building at 141 Williams Road (Tax Parcel# MS49 000004 001). 

 

Budget Impact: None 

 

Council Person and District: Chavers (District 2)  

 

Attachments: Development Services Report (RZ 21-03-01) 

  

http://www.statesboroga.gov/


 

  

City of Statesboro-Department of Planning and Development 

ZONING SERVICES REPORT 
P.O. Box 348    (912) 764-0630 

Statesboro, Georgia 30458  (912) 764-0664 (Fax) 

 RZ 21-03-01 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 

141 WILLIAMS ROAD 

LOCATION: 141 Williams Road  

EXISTING 
ZONING: 

R-15 (Single-Family Residential) 

ACRES: 2 Acres 

PARCEL 
TAX  

MAP #: 

MS49 000004 001 

COUNCIL        
DISTRICT:            

District 2 (Chavers) 

EXISTING 
USE: 

Duplex Buildings 

PROPOSED 
USE: 

Commercial  

PETITIONER                 Lindsay Martin 

ADDRESS                     236 North Main Street, Statesboro GA 30458 

 

REPRESENTATIVE     SAME AS ABOVE 

ADDRESS                     

PROPOSAL 

The applicant requests a zoning map amendment from the R-15 (Sing-Family Residential) zoning 
district to the HOC (Highway Oriented Commercial) zoning district, in order to construct a multi-
tenant commercial building on the site.  

 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

RZ 21-03-01 CONDITIONAL APPROVAL 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case RZ 21-03-01 

 

 



Page 3 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case RZ 21-03-01 

 

  



Page 4 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case RZ 21-03-01 

 

 



Page 5 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case RZ 21-03-01 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SURROUNDING LAND USES/ZONING 

Location Parcel Location & Zoning Information Land Use 

North Location Area #1:R-15 (Single-Family Residential) Multi-Family Apartment 

Northeast Location Area #2: HOC (Highway Oriented 
Commercial)  

Food World Complex 

East Location Area #3: HOC (Highway Oriented 
Commercial) 

Food World Complex 

North West  Location Area #4:  R-15 (Single-Family Residential) Wooded Lot 

Southeast Location Area #5:  R-15 (Single-Family Residential) Bulloch County Board of Education 

South Location Area #7:  R-15 (Single-Family Residential) Bulloch County Board of Education 

Southwest Location Area #8:  R-15 (Single-Family Residential) Bulloch County Board of Education 

West Location Area #9:  R-15 (Single-Family Residential) Wooded Lot 



Page 6 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case RZ 21-03-01 

 

 

SUBJECT SITE 

The subject site consists of one parcel containing 2 acres. Currently the parcel contains 
two dilapidated duplexes. The applicant seeks to demolish the duplexes and construct a 
business incubator building with sections for individual tenants. The site is currently R15, 
and under the current designation, would only be suitable for the construction of single-
family homes with subdivided land on 15,000 square foot lots. 

The City of Statesboro 2019 – 2029 Comprehensive Master Plan designates the subject 
site in the “Established Residential” character area, which is generally intended for small-
lot single-family residential and neighborhood scale retail and commercial development.  

ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ANALYSIS 

The property contains significant wetlands, covering the majority of the site. All this wetland 
must be delineated, and due to the amount projected, would need approval from the Army 
Corps of Engineers to allow for approval. There are no flood zones being projected on the 
site, but the area to the south does show a flood zone which may be negatively impacted 
by development on the site.  

COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION 

This site has access to City of Statesboro utilities. The construction of a commercial building 
on the site would increase traffic on Williams Road, but the nature of the building is not 
projected to affect the service level of the road.   

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT STANDARDS OF REVIEW 

The Statesboro Zoning Ordinance permits a zoning amendment subject to conditions if 
“approved by the mayor and city council based upon findings that the use is consistent with 
adopted plans for the area and that the location, construction, and operation of the 
proposed use will not significantly impact upon surrounding development or the community 
in general.” 

Article XX, Section 2007 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance provides eight (8) standards 
for the Mayor and City Council to consider “in making its determination” regarding a zoning 
map amendment request, in “balancing the promotions of the public health, safety, 
morality (morals), and general welfare against the right of unrestricted use of 
property.” Those standards are as follows: 

1. Existing uses and zoning or [of] property nearby. 

 The surrounding area is primarily single-family residential with some areas 
serving non-residential purposes (i.e. a church nearby). Other uses are 
Commercial with the Food World Complex located to the East with a variety 
of smaller commercial stores in the area.   

2. The extent to which property values are diminished by the particular zoning 
restrictions 

 It is Staff’s opinion that the property value would increase with the zoning 
change.  

3. The extent to which the description of property values of the property owner 
promotes the health, safety, morals or general welfare of the public.  



Page 7 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case RZ 21-03-01 

 

 The removal of the wetlands could have an overall negative impact on the 
adjacent properties as these areas are prone to hold water. Infrastructure 
improvements in the area already taking place should assist in reducing 
these impacts.  

4. The relative gain to the public, as compared to the hardship imposed upon the 
property owner. 

 The property owner could not reconstruct the property as built due to the 
lapse in use, and the development of single-family homes on the parcel would 
be difficult due to the layout and shape of the land.  

5. The suitability of the subject property for the zoned purposes. 

 There are nearby commercial uses of a higher intensity, but this area 
generally transitions to lower intensity residential. Locations on the North 
side of Williams Road are generally low intensity Commercial uses 
(daycares and churches) while those on the South are residences.  

6. The length of time the property has been vacant as zoned, considered in the 
context of land development in the area in the vicinity of the property.  

 The property was vacant for over 1 year due to the property being sold. 
Construction began to renovate the interior of the property in June of 2020.  

7. The extent the proposed change would impact the following: population density 
in the area; community facilities; living conditions in the area; traffic patterns 
and congestion; environmental aspects; existing and future land use patterns; 
property values in the adjacent areas; and 

 The proposed change would increase the density in the area, by adding 
habitable commercial uses. Issues of traffic congestion may be present 
upon completion of the project, but it is unknown at this time without 
completion of a formal traffic study.  

8. Consistency with other governmental land use, transportation, and 
development plans for the community. 

 The proposed use is consistent with the subject site’s character area 
(“Established Residential”) as stated in the 2019 – 2029 Comprehensive 
Master Plan. In order to maintain consistency, development must not 
exceed the level of neighborhood-scale retail. 

  



Page 8 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case RZ 21-03-01 

 

 

 

STAFF/PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval of RZ 21-03-01 If this petition is approved by the Mayor and City 
Council, it should be subject to the applicant’s agreement to the following enumerated 
condition(s): 

(1) Approval of this Zoning Map Amendment does not grant the right to develop on the 
site without approval. All additional construction must be approved by the City.   

(2) Development on the site may not disturb the wetlands in the area, unless permitting is 
granted by the Army Corps of Engineers.  

(3) An acceptable landscaping plan must be submitted with the building permit showing 
the buffering as required to adjacent residential developments 

At the regularly scheduled meeting of the Planning Commission on April 6, 2021, the 
Commission recommended approval of the zoning map amendment requested by RZ 21-03-
01 with a 5-0 vote.  

 



CITY OF STATESBORO 
 

COUNCIL 

Phil Boyum, District 1 

Paulette Chavers, District 2 

Venus Mack, District 3 

John Riggs, District 4 

Shari Barr, District 5 

 
 

 

Jonathan M. McCollar, Mayor 

Charles Penny, City Manager 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 • STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence    Certified City of Ethics  

Telephone: (912) 764-5468      Fax: (912) 764-4691                                                                   

www.statesboroga.gov  

To: Charles Penny, City Manager and Leah Harden, City Clerk 

 

From: Justin Williams, City Planner II 

 

Date: April 12, 2021 

 

RE: April 20, 2021 City Council Agenda Items 

 

Policy Issue: Statesboro Zoning Ordinance: Variance Request 

 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Denial of the Variance requested by V 21-

03-02 with conditions.  

 

Background: Mohamed F Alshuaibi requests a variance from Article XV, Section 

1509 (Table 4) of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance in order to construct a 

building sign exceeding the allowed square footage on a 4.03 acre property 

located at 1825 Northside Drive East (Tax Parcel# S38 000042 000). 

 

Budget Impact: None 

 

Council Person and District: Boyum (District 1)   

 

Attachments: Development Services Report (V 21-03-02) 

 

http://www.statesboroga.gov/


 

  

City of Statesboro-Department of Planning and Development 

ZONING SERVICES REPORT 
P.O. Box 348    (912) 764-0630 

Statesboro, Georgia 30458  (912) 764-0664 (Fax) 

 V 21-03-02 

ZONING VARIANCE REQUEST 

1825 Northside Drive East 

LOCATION: 1825 Northside Drive East  

EXISTING 
ZONING: 

CR (Commercial Retail) 

ACRES: 4.03 acres 

PARCEL 
TAX  

MAP #: 

S38 000042 000 

COUNCIL        
DISTRICT:            

District 1 (Boyum) 

EXISTING 
USE: 

Retail  

PROPOSED 
USE: 

Retail 

PETITIONER                 Mohamed F. Alshuaibi 

ADDRESS                     19 North Main Street, Statesboro GA 30458 

 

REPRESENTATIVE     SAME AS ABOVE 

ADDRESS                     

PROPOSAL 

The applicant requests a variance from Article XV, Section 1509 (Table 4) of the 
Statesboro Zoning Ordinance to allow for a larger business sign located in the CR 
(Commercial Retail) zoning district. Building signage for shared tenant buildings are 
generally allowed based on the allowed frontage of the building, and should not exceed a 
total of 60 square feet.  

 

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

V 21-03-02 DENIAL 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case V 21-03-02 

 

 



Page 3 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case V 21-03-02 

 

  



Page 4 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case V 21-03-02 

 

 



Page 5 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case V 21-03-02 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SURROUNDING LAND USES/ZONING 

Location Parcel Location & Zoning Information Land Use 

North Location Area #1: CR (Commercial Retail) Shopping Center 

Northeast Location Area #2: CR (Commercial Retail)/R3 
(Medium Density Multiple Family Residential) 

Church 

East Location Area #3: CR (Commercial Retail) Charter School 

Northwest Location Area #4: CR (Commercial Retail) Pawn Shop 

Southeast Location Area #5: CR (Commercial Retail) Tire Shop 

South Location Area #6: R15 (Single-Family Residential) Single-Family Residential Dwelling 

Southwest Location Area #7:  O (Office) Warehouse 

West Location Area #8: LI (Light Industrial) Undeveloped Lot 



Page 6 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case V 21-03-02 

 

SUBJECT SITE 

The subject site is a 4.03 acre lot containing a multi-tenant commercial building. The lot 
has a variety of businesses including a Sherwin Williams, realtor’s office, a medical 
equipment shop and the applicant’s retail vape shop. The applicant is seeking to add a sign 
to the face of the building that exceeds the general recommended size of 60 square feet 
per tenant as of Section 1509 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance. The applicant is seeking 
to place a wall sign of 120 square feet of the front of the building.  

The City of Statesboro 2019 – 2029 Comprehensive Master Plan designates the subject 
site as a part of the “Neighborhood Center” character area, which normally would be 
characterized by a blend of lower to medium density residential and commercial, personal 
service, and offices that are neighborhood scale in size and intensity. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ANALYSIS 

The subject property does not contain wetlands and is not located in a special flood hazard 
area. The variance applied for will have no impact on any storm water or wetlands in the 
area.  

COMMUNITY FACILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION 

The subject property is currently served by city utilities, sanitation and public safety. No 
significant impact is expected on community facilities or services as a result of this request.   

ZONING VARIANCE STANDARDS OF REVIEW 

The Statesboro Zoning Ordinance provides for the award of variances by the City Council 
from the zoning regulations, stating that “approval of a variance must be in the public 
interest, the spirit of the ordinance must be observed, public safety and welfare secured, 
and substantial justice done.” Article XVIII, Section 1801 of the Statesboro Zoning 
Ordinance states that the Mayor and Council [should] consider if the following are true in 
its consideration of a variance request: 

 

1. There are special conditions pertaining to the land or structure in 
question because of its size, shape, topography, or other physical 
characteristic and that condition is not common to other land or buildings 
in the general vicinity or in the same zoning district; 

 The requested variance will not require any structural changes to the lot.  

2. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions 
of the applicant; 

 The request exceeds the general allowance based on the ordinance. 

 

3. The application of the ordinance to this particular piece of property would 
create an unnecessary hardship; and 

 The structure does have sufficient room to support said signage, but due 
to the location of this sign, sufficient visibility from the road would be 
allowed without the variance. 



Page 7 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case V 21-03-02 

 

4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public 
good or impair the purposes and intent of the zoning regulations. 

 N/A 

 

Article XVIII, Section 1802 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance further outlines the 
qualifications needed to grant a variance to the zoning ordinance. These include 
uses that are consistent with the purpose and intent of the zoning ordinance and 
district in which the use is proposed to be located; uses that do not detract from 
neighboring property; and uses that are consistent with other uses in the area. In 
order to meet these qualifications, approval of any special exception for the 
proposed use at the subject parcel should (if necessary) include conditions that 
will ensure that development along this corridor remains consistent with the 
Statesboro Comprehensive Plan and the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance and that 
serve to mitigate negative effects of the use to the surrounding area’s character, 
uses, and zones.  

 The proposed use is consistent with the subject site’s character area 
Neighborhood Center” as stated in the 2019 – 2029 Comprehensive Master 
Plan. However the proposed variance request for a larger sign is not in 
conformance with the majority of signage utilized by the other tenants of the 
shopping center.   

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 8 of 8 

Development Services Report 

Case V 21-03-02 

 

 

STAFF/PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends Denial of V 21-03-02. If this petition is approved by the Mayor and City 
Council, it should be subject to the applicant’s agreement to the following enumerated 
condition(s): 

(1) Approval of this variance does not grant the right to construct the associated sign without 
the review of a sign permit application.  

(2) Additional signage on the building shall not be granted, and would require separate 
administrative approval. 

(3) Should the applicant request additional signage that exceeds the aggregate square 
footage allotted to the business, the request must be approved with determination by 
the Zoning Board of Appeals   

At the regularly scheduled meeting of the Planning Commission on April 6, 2021, the 
Commission recommended denial of the variance requested by V 21-03-02 with a 5-0 vote.  



 
 

RESOLUTION 2021-18: A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
DESTRUCTION OF CERTAIN MUNICIPAL RECORDS 

 
 

THAT WHEREAS, OCGA 50-18-90, et. seq., known as the "Georgia Records Act" 
requires that all public records be retained for a specified period set out in an adopted 
records retention schedule, with such records only being destroyed if the holding period has 
been met; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk is the city official in charge of maintaining said records, 

and recommending their destruction when the required holding period has been met; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk has certified public records noted  in the attachments  to 
this resolution have been retained and available for the required retention period, and are no 
longer needed by the City, and therefore has recommended that they be destroyed; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of The 

City of Statesboro, Georgia as follows: 
 

Section 1. That the public records listed on the attachments to the Resolution, which said 
attachments are hereby incorporated into this Resolution as if fully set forth in  the 
Resolution, are hereby authorized for destruction and are required to be destroyed  by the 
City Clerk in a manner consistent with state law. 

 
Section 2. That this Resolution shall be and remain effective from and after its date of 
adoption. 

 
Adopted this 20th day of April, 2021. 

 
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 

 
 

_______________________________ 
Leah Harden, City Clerk 

 





































Statesboro Fire Department 
Proudly serving the City of Statesboro and 

surrounding communities since 1905! 
 

   

24 West Grady Street | Statesboro, GA 30458 
Phone: (912) 764-3473 | Fax: (912) 681-7205 

 

Timothy E. Grams 
Fire Chief 

Jonathan M. McCollar 
Mayor 

City Council Agenda Memorandum 
 
To: Charles Penny, City Manager 
 
From: Timothy E. Grams, Fire Chief 
 
Date: 4-12-2021 
 
RE: Purchase of Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) Cylinders 
 
Policy Issue:  NA 
 
Recommendation: Allow the Statesboro Fire Department to move forward with the purchase of 40 
Scott SCBA Cylinders from Hydro-Stat, Inc. in the amount of $ 34,886.40.  
 
Background: The Fire Department utilizes Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) to breath in 
hazardous situations that require supplemental air as opposed to ambient. The emergencies include any 
call that has a smoke-filled environment or is oxygen deficient. The Fire Department has budgeted for 
the replacement of outdated and non-compliant SCBA Cylinders that have reached their end of use life. 
Bids were acquired in accordance with the City’s Purchasing Policy and Hydro Static, Inc. was the only 
responsive bidder.   
 
Budget Impact: This purchase will utilize budgeted funds from the 2019 SPLOST. 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
Attachments: None 
  



Statesboro Fire Department 
Proudly serving the City of Statesboro and 

surrounding communities since 1905! 
 

   

24 West Grady Street | Statesboro, GA 30458 
Phone: (912) 764-3473 | Fax: (912) 681-7205 

 

Timothy E. Grams 
Fire Chief 

Jonathan M. McCollar 
Mayor 

City Council Agenda Memorandum 
 
To: Charles Penny, City Manager 
 
From: Timothy E. Grams, Fire Chief 
 
Date: 4-12-2021 
 
RE: Purchase of Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) and SCBA Masks 
 
Policy Issue:  NA 
 
Recommendation: Allow the Statesboro Fire Department to move forward with the purchase of 20 
Scott X3 Pro SCBA’s and 20 SCBA Mask under the Georgia State Contract # 99999-SPD-SPD0000156 
to Fisher Scientific in the amount of $177,149.00 
 
Background: The Fire Department utilizes Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) to breath in 
hazardous situations that require supplemental air as opposed to ambient. The emergencies include any 
call that has a smoke-filled environment or is oxygen deficient. The Fire Department has budgeted for 
the replacement of outdated and non-compliant Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) that have 
reached their end of use life. Through the State of Georgia contract, the purchase of 20 SCBA’s and 20 
SCBA mask will utilize Fischer Scientific, which required no outside bid.  
 
Budget Impact: This purchase will utilize budgeted funds from the 2019 SPLOST. 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
Attachments: None 
  




































	04-20-2021 Council Agenda
	Finance Agenda Memos
	04-06-2021 Council Minutes
	SPD Memo Surplus Cars
	Council Memo_&_Packet_April_2021
	Resolution 2021-18 Destruction of Records.rtf
	Resolution 2021-18 Destruction of Records
	Record Destruction

	Youth Connect Program Documents
	SFD Memo-SCBA Cylinder Purchase-4-20-2021 (1)
	SFD Memo-SCBA Purchase-4-20-2021 (1)
	Change Orders 1-6
	Lift Station Pump (1)
	WWTP Windows (1)

